
To,

SOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITED
Deccan Chambers, 5th Floor, 6-3-666/B, Somajiguda, Hyderabad-500 082
Phones: 23311789, 23312341, Fax: 040-23319871 E-Mail: southernmagnasium@grnail.com

CIN : L27109TG1985PLC005303

Date: 0 G- 09- 2.0.2-I

BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street,

Mumbai - 400 001

Dear Sir/Madam,

Sub: Compliance with Regulation 30 and Regulation 34(1) of the (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015.

In accordance with Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation 2015 and Section 96 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions
of Companies Act, 2013, We hereby inform you that the Thirty Fifth Annual General Meeting of the

Company will be held on Thursday, September 30, 2021 at 11.30 A.M. 1ST through Video Conferencing/
Other Audio Visual Means ("VC/OAVM") in accordance with General Circulars Nos.14/2020, 17/2020,
20/2020 and 02/2021 dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020 and January 15, 2021

respectively, issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Circular No.

SEBVHO/CFD/CMDJ/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 and SEBVHO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/1 I

dated January 15, 2021 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

Further we would like to inform you that pursuant to provision of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule

20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 ofSEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is providing e-voting facility
to its shareholders to exercise the right to vote at the AGM. The remote e-voting will commence on

Monday, 27th September, 2021 at 09.00 A.M. and wiJI end on Wednesday, 29th September, 2021 at

05.00 P.M. The facility of e-voting will also be available during the AGM and those members present in

the AGM through VC/OA VM facility, who have not ca t their votes on resolution through remote e­

voting and I or otherwise not baned from doing so shall be eligible to vote through the e-voting system at

AGM. The members who ca.st their votes by remote e-voting prior to AGM may also attend the meeting
but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. The cut-off date for the purpose of determining the

members eligible for voting is fixed as 23rd September, 2021.

We enclose herewith the Annual Report for the financial year 2020-21 along with Notice of 35th Annual

General Meeting.

Thanking you
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Jt. Managing Director & CFO
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NOTICENOTICENOTICENOTICENOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 35th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF
SOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON THURSDAY, 30th SEPTEMBER,
2021 AT 11:30 A.M. THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (“VC”) / OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS (“OAVM”)
TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the company including Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2021, statement of Profit & Loss for the year and Cash Flow Statement for the
year ended on that date together with the Schedules and Notes attached thereto, along with the
Reports of Auditors and Directors thereon.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Southern Magnesium and Chemicals LimitedSouthern Magnesium and Chemicals LimitedSouthern Magnesium and Chemicals LimitedSouthern Magnesium and Chemicals LimitedSouthern Magnesium and Chemicals Limited

N. RAJENDER PRASAD
JT. MANAGING DIRECTOR & CFO

(DIN: 00145659)
Place : Hyderabad
Date : 11-08-2021

NOTES

1. In view of the prevailing COVID-19 pandemic situation across the country, the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (“MCA”) vide circular Nos.14/2020 dated 8thApril, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated 13th April,
2020, Circular No. 20/2020 dated 05th May, 2020 and Circular No.02/2021 dated 13th January, 2021
read with Circular nos. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/
11, dated May 12, 2020 and January 15, 2021, respectively issued by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Circulars”) company is permitted to hold the
Annual General Meeting (“AGM” or “Meeting”) through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of
the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”) and Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the
Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the Circulars on AGM through VC / OAVM,
physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment
of proxies by the Members will not be available for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance
Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

3. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA
Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 05, 2020 and January 13, 2021 the Company is
providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the
AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services
(India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s
agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting
system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

4. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled
time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000 members
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on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or
more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on
account of first come first served basis.

5. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose
of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

6. Corporate members intending to authorize their representatives to attend the Meeting are requested
to send a scanned certified copy of the board resolution (pdf/jpeg format) authorizing their
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. The said Resolution/Authorization
shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered email address to dhr300@gmail.com
with a copy marked to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

7. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from 24.09.2021
to 30.09.2021 (both days inclusive).

8. In terms of the Listing Regulations, securities of listed companies can only be transferred in
dematerialized form with effect from 1 April 2019. In view of the above, Members are advised to
dematerialize shares held by them in physical form. The ISIN in respect of equity shares is
INE308N01012.

9. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify immediately any change in their
address along with address proof, i.e., Electricity /Telephone Bill, Driving License or a copy of passport
and Bank particulars to the company or its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and in case their shares
are held in dematerialized form, this information should be passed on directly to their respective
Depository Participants and not to the company/RTA without delay.

10. As part of its “green initiative in Corporate Governance”, MCA allows paperless compliances including
service of a notice/document by companies to their Members through electronic mode. Therefore,
members are requested to update their e-mail IDs with the Company who have not provided earlier
in order to enable the company to follow the instructions of MCA and full fill the initiatives taken by
Government of India in this regard in future correspondence to members.

11. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020 and January
15, 2021 Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2020-21 is being sent only through
electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/
Depositories. Members may note that the Notice of AGM and Annual Report 2020-21 will also be
available on the Company’s website www.southernmagnesium.com, website of CDSL
(www.evotingindia.com) and on the websites of the Stock Exchange, i.e., BSE Limited
(www.bseindia.com).

12. The Statutory Registers and the documents pertaining to the items of business to be transacted at the
AGM are available for inspection in electronic mode. The shareholders may write an e-mail to
southernmagnesium@gmail.com and the Company shall respond suitably.

13. The Meeting shall be deemed to be held at the registered office of the Company at 6-3-666/B Deccan
Chambers, 5th Floor, Somajiguda, Hyderabad, Telangana, 500082. Since the AGM will be held
through VC / OAVM, the route map to the venue is not annexed to this Notice.

14. SEBI has mandated the submission of permanent account number (PAN) by every participant in
securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are therefore, requested to submit their
PAN to their depository participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members
holding shares in physical form should submit their PAN to the Company or its RTA.
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15. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is available for the
Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination
are requested to register the same by submitting Nomination Form No. SH-13. Members are requested
to submit the said details to the Company/ RTA in case shares are held in physical form and to their
depository participants in case the shares are held by them in electronic form.

16. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, the Member whose name appears as the first holder
in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the
AGM.

A. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

I. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the Members are provided with the facility to cast
their vote electronically, through the e-voting services provided by Central Depository Services
(India) Limited (CDSL) on all the resolutions set forth in this Notice. The instructions for e-voting are
given herein below.

II. The remote e-voting period commences on Monday, September 27, 2021 (9:00 A.M IST) and ends
on Wednesday, September 29, 2021 (5:00 P.M IST). During this period, Members holding shares
either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on Thursday, September 23, 2021 i.e. cutoff date,
may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.
Those Members, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not cast their
vote on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall
be eligible to vote through e-voting system during the AGM.

III. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend/ participate
in the AGM through VC/OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

IV. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up equity share capital
of the Company as on the cut-off date.

V. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its
shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the
participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed
entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs
and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been
decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential,
through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account
holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not
only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating
in e-voting process.

VI In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on
e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
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Type of shareholders

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
Demat mode with CDSL

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with NSDL

Login Method

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made
available to reach e-Voting page without any fur ther
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New
System Myeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see
the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is
in progress as per the information provided by company. On
clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting
page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/
NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting
service providers’ website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/
EasiRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting
link available on  www.cdslindia.com home page or click on
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin. The system
will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile
& Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting optionwhere
the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please
visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by
typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen
will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password.
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting
services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-
directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting
& voting during the meeting.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetingsfor
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:
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Login Method

2) If the user is not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register
is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online
for IDeAS “Portal or click   at https://eservices.nsdl.com/
SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing
the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will
open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or
e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-
Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during
the meeting

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat
account through your Depository Participant registered with
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will
be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option,
you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature.
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and
you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Type of shareholders

Individual Shareholders
(holding securities in
demat mode) login
through their Depository
Participants

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues
related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
Demat mode with CDSL

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
Demat mode with NSDL

Helpdesk details

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738
and 22-23058542-43.

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll
free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

VIILogin method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders
other than individual holding in Demat form
i. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

ii. Click on “Shareholders” tab
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iii. Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

iv. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

v. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an
earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

vi. If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For physical shareholders and other individual shareholders holding shares in Demat.

  PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both
demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are
requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/ RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your
demat account or in the company records in order to login.

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member
id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (iii).

Dividend
Bank
Details
OR Date
of Birth
(DOB)

vii. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

viii. Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company election screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that
this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company
on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It
is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to
keep your password confidential.

ix. For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

x. Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

xi. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent
to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

xii. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

xiii. After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will
be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

xiv. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

xv. You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

xvi. If a demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.
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B. INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

i. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for
Remote e-voting.

ii. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted
their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so,
shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM.

iii. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the
same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/ OAVM facility, then the votes
cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is
available only to the shareholders attending  the meeting.

iv. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However,
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

C. NOTE FOR NON – INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS AND CUSTODIANS

i. Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to
log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

ii. A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

iii. After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

iv. The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

v. A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to
verify the same.

vi. Alternatively Non-Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/Authority
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized
to vote, to the Scrutinizer at the email address dhr300@gmail.com and to the Company at the email
address viz; southernmagnesium@gmail.com. If they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded
same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

D. PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED
WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING:

i. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

ii. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant (DP)

iii. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through
Depository.

E. INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS
UNDER:

i. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM through the CDSL e-
Voting system. Shareholders may access the same at https:// www.evotingindia.com under shareholders/
members login by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in
shareholder/members login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed.
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ii. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops/iPads for better experience.

iii. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid
any disturbance during the meeting.

iv. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It
is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid
glitches.

v. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register
themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 5 days prior to meeting mentioning
their name, demat account number/ folio number, email id, mobile number at company email id viz;
southernmagnesium@gmail.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but
have queries may send their queries in advance 5 days prior to meeting mentioning their name,
demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at southernmagnesium@gmail.com.
These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.

vi. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express
their views/ask questions during the meeting.

17. In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  022-23058738 and 022-23058542/43.

18. All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to
Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th
Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai –
400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call 022-23058542/43.

19. The Company has appointed Ms. Shaik Razia or failing her, Mr. Mohit Kumar Goyal, Partners of
D. Hanumanta Raju & Co., Company Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process.
The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast
during the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and make, not later than 2
working days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast
in favour or against, if any, and submit the same to the Chairman or to a person authorised by him.

20. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website
www.southernmagnesium.com and on the website of CDSL not later than 2 working days of the
conclusion of the AGM of the Company and shall also be communicated to BSE Limited. Subject to
receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the
Meeting, i.e. September 30, 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORTDIRECTORS’ REPORTDIRECTORS’ REPORTDIRECTORS’ REPORTDIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members,

SOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITEDSOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITEDSOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITEDSOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITEDSOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITED,

Your Directors hereby present the 35th Annual Report of your Company together with the Audited Financial
Statements and the Auditors’ Report of your Company for the financial year ended, 31st March, 2021. The
summarized financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2021 are as under:: 

FINANCIALFINANCIALFINANCIALFINANCIALFINANCIAL REPORT / OPERA REPORT / OPERA REPORT / OPERA REPORT / OPERA REPORT / OPERATIONS:TIONS:TIONS:TIONS:TIONS: (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Current YCurrent YCurrent YCurrent YCurrent Yearearearearear Previous Year
As on 31.03.2021As on 31.03.2021As on 31.03.2021As on 31.03.2021As on 31.03.2021 As on 31.03.2020

Net Sales / Income from Operations 201.24 158.56
Other income 2.58 2.77
Expenses 215.47 195.73
Exceptional items 0 0
Net Profit (+) / (Loss) before Tax for the Period (11.65) (34.39)
Tax Expenses/Deferred Tax (2.41) (11.30)
Net Profit (+) / (Loss) for the Period (9.24) (23.09)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS:

During the period, revenue of the Company has increased to Rs.201.24 Lakhs as compared from Rs.
158.56 Lakhs of the previous year. The Company has suffered a loss of Rs.9.24 Lakhs in the current year
against loss of Rs.23.09 lakhs in the previous year.

The unpredicted outbreak of Corona Virus (COVID-19) resulted into a sudden announcement of the
nationwide lockdown effective from 23rd March 2020. The region where the factory is situated had minimal
impact of COVID -19. The operations of the company w.r.t production and sales are not affected materially.
We have taken all necessary action to safeguard the health of workers by following the guidelines as
issued from time to time by the Government of India and the State Government. There is no major impact
on receivables and overall business operations of the company. Company has been paying salaries to all
employees and no deductions were made. Even during lockdown period the company was able to
execute/ fulfill orders and was supplying its products as and when orders were placed with the company.

So, the impact of COVID-19 is minimal over the Company’s performance, Financials, internal control
system and demand for our products continues to be same as in past.

Meanwhile, since the situation is continuously evolving, the impact assessed may be different from the
current situation today and the Management will continue to monitor any material changes arising due to
the impact of this pandemic on financial and operational performance of the Company and take necessary
measures to address the situation.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Board of Directors hereby confirms and declares that:

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March 2021, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed.

(b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the statement of profit and loss
of the Company for that period;

(c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company  and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
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(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2021 on a going
concern basis; and

(e) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

(f) The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

1. State of affairs of the company:

The Company deals in the business of Magnesium Metal and related goods. During the year, the
Company has seen increase in terms of the Sales. However, the Company has suffered a loss of
Rs.9.24 Lakhs which is reflected in the financial results of the Company.

2. Amounts, if any, carried to reserves:

The Board of Directors of your Company has decided not to transfer any amount to the Reserves for
the year under review.

3. Dividend:

The Company has not declared any dividend during the year under review.

4. Inter - Corporate deposits:

(i) The details relating to deposits are as follows: The Company has Inter Corporate Deposits, the
details of which are given below.

(a) Accepted during the year - Nil

(b) Remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year – Nil

(c) Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon
during the year and if so, number of such cases and the total amount involved at the beginning
of the year; - Nil

Maximum outstanding during the year; Rs.23,90,000/-

Outstanding at the end of the year; - Rs.21,98,000/-

(ii) The details of deposits which are not in compliance with the requirements of the Act- Nil

5. Share Capital:

The authorised share capital of the Company consists of 40,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each and
10,00,000 - 5% redeemable cumulative preference shares of Rs.10 each aggregating to Rs.5 crores.

The paid-up share capital of the Company is Rs.3,00,00,000 divided into 30,00,000 equity shares of
Face Value Rs. 10 each. During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares with
differential voting rights nor granted stock options nor sweat equity.

6. Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.

7. Number of meetings of the Board

Secretarial Standards as applicable have been complied with. The intervening gap between the
Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended from time to time. Further, 5 (Five) meetings of the board were held during the year as per
the details given below:
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S. No. Date of Total No. of No. of Directors % of
meeting Directors on the attended Attendance

Date of Meeting
1 27.06.2020 6 6 100

2 31.08.2020 6 5 83.33

3 14.09.2020 6 5 83.33

4 10.11.2020 6 5 83.33

5 11.02.2021 6 6 100

Number of meetings No. of meetings % of
S. No. Name of the Director Which director was attended Attendance

entitled to attend
1 Mr. N. Ravi Prasad 5 5 100
2 Mr. N. Rajender Prasad 5 5 100
3 Mr. G. Raghavendra Rao 5 5 100
4. Mr. V. S. S. Prakash 5 5 100
5. Mr. K. Eshwaraih 5 5 100
6. Mrs. Padmavathi Kollipara 5 2 40

8. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company which
have occurred between the end of financial year of the company to which the financial statements
relate  and the date of the report:

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
which occurred between the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate and
the date of this report.

9. Board Evaluation:

The board of directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees
and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the corporate governance requirements
to the extent applicable as prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”).

The performance was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis
of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes,
information and functioning, etc.

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee
members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee
meetings, etc.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) reviewed the performance of
the individual directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to
the board and committee meetings like preparedness of the issues to be discussed, meaningful and
constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc.

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of Non- Independent directors,
performance of the Board as a whole taking into account the views of Executive Directors and Non-
Executive Directors was considered. The same was discussed in the board meeting that followed the
meeting of the Independent Directors, at which the performance of Board, its committee and individual
directors was also discussed.
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10. Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration and others details:

The company’s policy on Directors appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in
section 178 of the Companies Act are as under:

Nomination and Remuneration Policy of Southern Magnesium and Chemicals Limited is as under.

INTRODUCTION

The Remuneration Policy of Southern Magnesium and Chemicals Limited (the “Company”) is aligned
with the compensation philosophy of its competitors which is to pay competitively and reward
performance. To achieve this philosophy, total compensation is based on employee’s role, market
value of job and employees contributions.

This Policy is designed to attract, motivate, and retain talent by creating a congenial work environment,
encouraging initiatives, personal growth and team work, and inculcating a sense of belonging and
involvement, besides offering appropriate remuneration packages and retirement benefits.

The policy reflects the Company’s objectives for good corporate governance as well as sustained
long term value creation for shareholders.

This Remuneration Policy applies to Directors and senior management including its Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP) of the Company.

1. DEFINITIONS

Act means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under, as amended from time to time.

“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

“Committee” means Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted by the Board

“Directors” mean Directors of the Company.

“Key Managerial Personnel” means

Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or Manager or Whole-time director;

Chief Financial Officer;

Company Secretary; and such other officer as may be prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.

“Executive Directors” mean Managing Director/ Joint Managing Director and Whole Time
Director,   if any.

“Senior Management” means personnel of the company who are members of senior leadership
typically vice presidents or equivalent and higher position levels.

2. GUIDING PRINICIPLE

The guiding principle is that the remuneration and the other terms of employment should effectively
help in attracting and retaining talented employees.

While designing remuneration packages, industry‘s best practices, cost of living and potential of
employees are also taken into consideration.

3. POLICY RELATING TO THE REMUNERATION FOR THE WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR, KMP AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

General:

a) The remuneration package of KMP will be determined by the Committee and recommended to
Board for approval. In addition, the approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central
Government, wherever required, will be obtained for the remuneration package of Executive
Directors. The remuneration package of other senior management personnel will be recommended
by Managing Director and Jt. Managing Director and be submitted to Committee for approval.
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b) The remuneration package of Executive Directors shall be in accordance with the percentage
/ slabs / conditions laid down in the Act.

c) Increments to the existing remuneration package of Executive Directors may be recommended
by the Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders.

Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Directors, Executive Directors,
Whole-time Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and
any other employees for indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such
insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable to such personnel.

4. REMUNERATION TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

Pay and Allowances:

The Executive Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for a monthly
remuneration as may be approved by the Committee or Board on the recommendation of the
Committee. The remuneration comprises of basic pay and allowances in addition to perquisites such
as contribution to Provident Fund, Gratuity, group life insurance, group medical insurance etc.

Minimum Remuneration:

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company
shall pay remuneration to its Executive Directors in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of
the Act and other applicable provisions.

Provisions for excess remuneration:

If any Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such
sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without the sanction of the Central Government,
where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold
it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless
permitted by the Central Government.

5. Remuneration to Independent Directors:

Remuneration/Commission:

The remuneration/commission shall be fixed as per the slabs and conditions mentioned in the Act.

a) Sitting Fees:

Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board or
Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the amount fixed by the
Board from time to time.

b) Commission:

Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit
not exceeding 1% of the profits of the Company computed as per the applicable provisions of the
Act.

c) Stock Options:

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock options of the Company.

d) Expenses for attending meetings

The expenses incurred by the Independent Directors for attending the meetings of  Board of
Directors and Committees of the Board shall be reimbursed by the Company or alternatively the
Company may provide air tickets, lodging facility and conveyance to the Independent Directors.
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6. Disclosure of information

Information on the total remuneration of Board of Directors, Whole time Directors and KMP/senior
management personnel is disclosed in the annual financial statements/ Annual Report as per statutory
requirements.

7. Application of the Remuneration Policy

This Remuneration Policy shall continue to guide all future employment of Directors, Senior Management
including Key Managerial Personnel.

8. Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors:

The Board of Directors evaluates the performance of independent directors on yearly basis.

a. All pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors

The Company has paid Rs. 2,500/- as fees for attending Board meetings to Mr. Eshwariah Kaparthi
(Non-Executive- Independent Director) during the financial year ended on March 31, 2021.

9. Disclosure with respect to remuneration:

No other element of remuneration package is paid to the Non-Executive Directors except payment of
sitting fees to the Independent Non Executive Director as disclosed above.

The Company did not issue any stock options during the year.

11. Audit Committee:

The Composition of Audit Committee as on March 31, 2021 is as follows:

All members of Audit Committee are financially literate and have accounting and related financial
management expertise.

All the recommendations made by the Committees of Board including the Audit Committee were
accepted and approved by the Board.

12. Stakeholder Relationship Committee:

The Composition of Stakeholder relationship committee as on March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Name Category Designation
Mr. G. Raghavendra Rao Independent Non- Executive Director Chairperson

Mr. V. S. S. Prakash Independent Non- Executive Director Member

Mr. K. Eshwaraih Independent Non- Executive Director Member

Mr. N. Rajender Prasad Jt. Managing Director and CFO Member

Five meetings of the committee were held during the year as per the details given below:

S. No. Date of meeting Total No. of Directors No. of Directors % of
on the Date of Meeting attended Attendance

1. 27.06.2020 4 4 100%
2. 31.08.2020 4 4 100%
3. 14.09.2020 4 4 100%
4. 10.11.2020 4 4 100%
5. 11.02.2021 4 4  100%

Name Category Designation
Mr. G. Raghavendra Rao Independent Non- Executive Director Chairperson

Mr. V. S. S. Prakash Independent Non- Executive Director Member

Mr. K. Eshwaraih Independent Non- Executive Director Member

Mr. N. Rajender Prasad Jt. Managing Director and CFO Member
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Two meetings of the committee were held during the year as per the details given below:

S. No. Date of meeting Total No. of Directors No. of Directors % of
on the Date of Meeting attended Attendance

1. 14.08.2020 4 4 100

2. 11.02.2021 4 4 100

13. Nomination and remuneration Committee:

The Composition of Nomination and remuneration Committee as on March 31, 2021 is as
follows:

Name Category Designation
Mr. G. Raghavendra Rao Independent Non- Executive Director Chairperson

Mr. V. S. S. Prakash Independent Non- Executive Director Member

Mr. K. Eshwaraih Independent Non- Executive Director Member

Mr. N. Rajender Prasad Jt. Managing Director and CFO Member

One meetings of the committee were held during the year as per the details given below:

S. No. Date of meeting Total No. of Directors No. of Directors % of
on the Date of Meeting attended Attendance

1. 14.08.2020 4 4 100

14. Internal Financial Control Systems and their Adequacy

The details in respect of internal financial control and their adequacy are included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis which forms part of this report.

15. Declaration by Independent Directors:

The Company has received necessary declaration from Independent Directors under Section 149(7)
of the Companies Act, 2013, that they meets criteria of Independence laid down in Section 149(6) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and have complied with
the Code for Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013.

16. Risk Management:

The Board of the company regularly reviewed and has adopted measures to frame, implement and
monitor the risk management plan for the company. The Board is responsible for reviewing the risk
management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. The audit committee has additional oversight in the
area of financial risks and controls. Major risk indentified, if any, by the business functions are
systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

17. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013:

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.

18. Particulars of contracts or arrangements made with related parties:

No transactions/contracts/arrangements of the nature as specified in Sec.188 (1) of the Companies
Act, 2013 were entered by the company during the year under review with related party/parties.

During the year, the Company had not given Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans to firm/
companies in which directors are interested.
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19. The change in the nature of business, if any:

There was no change in the nature of Business.

20. The details of directors or key managerial personnel who were appointed or have resigned
during the year:

There was no appointment or resignation of any director or Key Managerial Personnel during the
period under review.

21. The names of companies which have become or ceased to be its Subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies during the year:

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or associate company which have become
or ceased to be its Subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate company during the year.

22. The details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future:

There are no significant material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the
going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

23. Particulars of Employees:

The information required under section 197 of the act read with rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, are given below:

a. The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
company for the financial year:

c. The percentage increase in median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 13.314%
d. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company:23
e. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial

personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:
Average increase in salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in 2020-21 was
6.98%
Average increase in salaries of managerial personnel in 2020-21 is 17.362%

Non Executive Directors Ratio to median remuneration
Mr. Raghavendra Rao Griddalur NA
Mr. Surya Sesha Prakash Valluru NA

Mr. Kaparthi Eshwaraih NA

Mrs. Padmavathi Kollipara NA

Executive Directors Ratio to median remuneration

Mr. N. Ravi Prasad 17.63 : 1

Mr. N. Rajender Prasad 17.29 : 1

b. The percentage increase or decrease in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary in the financial year:

Director, chief executive officer, % of increase in remuneration
chief financial officer, company secretary in the financial year

Mr. N. Ravi Prasad –MD and CEO 23.570
Mr. N. Rajender Prasad – Jt.MD and CFO 11.640
Ms. Sneha S Soni NA
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f. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company:

The Company affirms remuneration is as per the Remuneration policy of the company.

g. Further information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees
of the Company, is available at the registered office of the company. If any Member is interested
in obtaining this information or a copy thereof, such Member may write to the Company at the
Registered Office in this regard.

24. The details about the policy developed and implemented by the company on corporate social
responsibility initiatives taken during the year:

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives
as the said provisions are not applicable.

25. Disclosure as per Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:

Your company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at work place and has adopted a policy on
prevention, prohibition and Redressal of sexual harassment at work place in line with the provision
of Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
and rules framed there under.

An Internal Complaints Committee (“ICC”) has been set up by the senior management (with women
employees constituting the majority). The ICC is responsible for redressal of complaints related to
sexual harassment and follows the guidelines provided in the Policy.

No complaints have been received by the company on sexual harassment during the financial year
2020-2021.

26. Disclosure Requirements:

As per Regulation 15 of SEBI (LODR), 2015, corporate governance report with certificate from
Practicing Company Secretary thereon is not applicable to the company. Management Discussion
and Analysis as required is attached hereunder and forms part of this report.

The company has formulated a whistle blower policy. A copy of the same is made available at the
registered office of the company and also at the website of the company. The provisions of this policy
are in line with the provisions of section 177(9) of the Act.

Your Company has a vigil mechanism to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The
Whistle Blower Policy enables reporting of unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation
of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy, to the management. The vigil mechanism also
ensures strict confidentiality is maintained and provides adequate safeguards against victimization
of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provided for direct access to the Chairman of the
Audit committee in exceptional cases.

27. Details in respect of Frauds reported by Auditors under 143(12) of Companies Act 2013

During the period under review there were no instances of Fraud reported by the Auditors in the
Company.

28. Auditors:

Company has appointed M/s. Brahmayya & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
000513S) Hyderabad, as Statutory Auditors of the Company at its AGM held on 29.09.2017 to hold
office as statutory auditor for a period of five years and being eligible they continue to hold office.

29. Auditors Report:

During the period under review no qualification/reservations/adverse remarks have been made by
the Statutory Auditor. The Report provided by them as attached is self-explanatory.
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30. Secretarial Auditors’ Report:

The company has appointed Mr. P.A.P Murthy, Practising Company Secretary, Hyderabad as the
Secretarial Auditor of the company to undertake audit as per the provisions of section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the report of the secretarial auditor is annexed to this report. Management’s
reply to the observations, comments and qualifications made by the secretarial auditor are as
under:

1. As required under Regulation 31(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, hundred percent of the
shareholding of promoters and promoters group in not in dematerialized form.

The board of directors of the company is discussing the matter with the promoters and has requested
them from time to time to complete de-materialization of their share holding immediately.

31. Annual Return Web Link:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 and Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
from time to time, the Annual Return as on March 31, 2021 in form MGT-7 is available on the
Company’s website www.http://southernmagnesium.com/images/Annual%20Repor ts/
Annual%20Report%202020-21.pdf.

32. Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, Foreign exchange
Earnings and outgo as required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is as under

(A) Conservation of energy : NIL

(B) Technology absorption : Not Applicable

(C) Foreign exchange earnings : NIL

(D) Foreign exchange outgo : NIL

33. Maintenance of Cost Records:

Maintenance of cost records is not specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 to our company.

34. Acknowledgement:

Your Directors wish to place on record their gratitude to shareholders and thank the customers,
bankers, vendors, State and Central Governments Authorities for their continued support to your
Company’s growth. Your Directors also wish to place on record, their appreciation for the contribution
made by the employees at all levels, who, through their competence, sincerity, hard work, solidarity
and dedicated support enabled your company to make continued progress.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
 Southern Magnesium and Chemicals Limited

N. Rajender prasad N.  Ravi  Prasad
 Jt. Managing Director & CFO   Managing Director & CEO

(DIN- 00145659)   (DIN- 00319537)
Place : Hyderabad
Date : 11-08-2021
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
SOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITED
Deccan Chambers, 5th Floor6-3-666/B, Somajiguda,
Hyderabad Telangana- 500082.
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by “Southern Magnesium and Chemicals Limited” (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in accordance with the guidance note issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
and in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, according to the explanations
given to me, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2021, complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings. (Not applicable to the
Company during the period of audit);

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
(‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the period of audit)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not
applicable to the Company during the period of audit);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not
applicable to the Company during the period of audit);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 ; (Not applicable
to the Company during the period of audit);

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the
Company during the period of audit)

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and

(j) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018
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(vi) As per the representations and explanations given by the Management and Officers of the Company there
are no industry specific laws applicable to the Company.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and notified under the
Companies Act, 2013;

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above, subject to the following observation:

As required under Regulation 31(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 hundred percent of the shareholding of promoters and promoters
group in not in dematerialized form.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. There are no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during the
period under review.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions at the Board Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the Minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the company has no specific events / actions having a major bearing on
the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure AAnnexure AAnnexure AAnnexure AAnnexure A and forms an integral
part of this report.

‘ANNEXURE A’‘ANNEXURE A’‘ANNEXURE A’‘ANNEXURE A’‘ANNEXURE A’

To,
The Members,
SOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITEDSOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITEDSOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITEDSOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITEDSOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITED
My report of even Date is to be read along with this letter
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My responsibility is

to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide
a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness and with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Name of Company Secretary:
P.A.P. MurthyFCS: 926; C. P. No: 6633

UDIN:F000926C000767395
Place : Hyderabad
Date : 11-8-2021

Name of Company Secretary:
P.A.P. MurthyFCS: 926; C. P. No: 6633

UDIN:F000926C000767395
Place : Hyderabad
Date : 11-8-2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALMANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALMANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALMANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALMANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISYSISYSISYSISYSIS

The Company was set up to produce primary Magnesium Metal. However due to dumping magnesium metal from
China we had to shift on focus to downstream products.  Today we largely produce magnesium powders,
turnings, and also regular magnesium metal ingots.

OPPURTUNITIES, RISKS, CONCERNS THREATS & OUTLOOK:

The past year has been challenging with some of our regular customers not placing new orders as they already
had stock. To make up some of the loss your company has identified a few new customers. This way the factory
production levels have been maintained.

Further, in recent times, the price of magnesium ingot has been very volatile and your Company has been making
all efforts to see that our margins are maintained.

We are focused on increasing our market share of existing products and building strong relationship with our
customers, there by laying a robust foundation for sustainable growth.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS & ADEQUACY:

The Company has established an appropriate system of internal control to ensure that there exists a proper control
over all the transactions and that all its assets are properly safeguarded and not exposed to risk arising out of
unauthorized use or disposal. The Internal Audit is conducted at all divisions for all the key areas of business. The
Internal Control System is supplemented by a programme of Internal Audit to ensure that the assets are properly
accounted for and the business operations are conducted in adherence to laid down policies and procedures. The
Internal Audit is oriented towards review of controls and operational improvements.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

Highlights of financial and operational Performance are given below:

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

Net Sales / Income from Operations 201.24 158.56

Other income 2.58 2.77

Expenses 215.47 195.73

Exceptional items 0 0

Net Profit (+) / (Loss) before Tax for the Period (11.65) (34.39)

Tax Expenses/Deferred Tax (2.41) (11.30)

Net Profit (+) / (Loss) for the Period (9.24) (23.09)

SEGMENT WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE: NOT APPLICABLE

HUMAN RESOURCES, INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT RELATIONS:

Relations with the employees remained cordial in general throughout the year. In order to optimize the contribution of
the employees to the Company’s business and operations, in- house training is given to the employees to induce
contribution to productivity increase and development programmes for all levels of employees have been devised.
Occupational Health Safety and Environmental Management are given utmost importance.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES:

The Company’s senior management makes disclosures to the Board relating to all material financial and commercial
transactions as when they occur.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Statement in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives,  projections,  estimates,
expectations or  predictions  may be  ‘forward-looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable\ securities laws and
regulations and such forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially
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from those expressed or implied, important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations include
raw material availability and prices, cyclical demand and pricing in the Company’s principal markets, changes in
Government regulations, tax regimes, economic developments within India and the Countries in which the Company
conducts business and other incidental factors. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any
forward looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise. Readers are cautioned
not to place undue reliance on these forward looking statements that speaks only as of their dates.

Details of changes in key financial ratios:

Financial Ratios 2020-21 2019-20

Debtors Turnover 19.33 Times 8.80 Times

Inventory Turnover 0.89 Times 0.68 Times

Interest Coverage Ratio -0.32 -3.05

Current Ratio 2.64 4.86

Debt Equity Ratio 0.54 0.28

Operating Profit Margin (%) -1.40% -16.33%

Net Profit Margin (%) -4.59% -14.56%

Return on Net Worth -3.75% -9.03%

The company largely deals with government entities and the business is to a large extent dependent on the orders
received from the government entities. During the period revenue of the Company has increased to Rs.201.24
Lakhs as compared from Rs. 158.56 Lakhs of the previous year.

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 11-08-2021

For and on behalf of the board of Directors of
Southern Magnesium and Chemicals Limited

(Mr. N. Rajender Prasad)
Jt. Managing Director & CFO

(DIN: 00145659)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITINDEPENDENT AUDITINDEPENDENT AUDITINDEPENDENT AUDITINDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTOR’S REPORTOR’S REPORTOR’S REPORTOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITED, HYDERABADTO THE MEMBERS OF SOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITED, HYDERABADTO THE MEMBERS OF SOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITED, HYDERABADTO THE MEMBERS OF SOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITED, HYDERABADTO THE MEMBERS OF SOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITED, HYDERABAD

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITED
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the accompanying
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its Loss and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
responsibility for the Audit of Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matters

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when
significant risks and rewards in respect of ownership of
products are transferred to customers.

Revenue from domestic sale of products is recognized
on dispatch of products.

Revenue from products is stated exclusive of Goods
and Service Tax (GST), returns and applicable trade
discounts and allowances.

Revenue from services is recognized as per the terms
of contract with customers when a performance
obligation is satisfied by transferring control over a
promised good or service.

Auditor’s Response

Principal audit procedures

• Assessing the appropriateness of the company’s
revenue recognition policies in line with IND AS
115 – “Revenue from contracts with customers”

• Understanding the Revenue recognition policy,
evaluating the design and implementation of
company’s control in respect of revenue
recognition.

• Testing the supporting documentation for sales
transactions recorded during the period closer to
the year end and subsequent to the year end,
including examination of credit notes issued after
the year end to determine whether revenue was
recognised in the correct period.

Testing the effectiveness of such controls over
revenue cut off at year-end.
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Other information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued there
under and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

 • Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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for BRAHMAYYA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Regn No. 000513S

(K.SHRAVAN)
Partner

Membership No.215798
UDIN: 21215798AAAAIH6810

Place : HYDERABAD
Date : 22.06.2021

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters
specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books,

c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and the cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account,

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act,

f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”.

g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2021 has been paid / provided by the
Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.
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The Annexure referred to in Para 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements”  of our report of even date ,to the members of SOUTHERN MAGNESUIM AND CHEMICALS
LIMITED, for the year ended  March  31,2021.,

1. a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

b. As explained to us, the management has physically verified the fixed assets during the year and
there is a regular programme of physical verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of the assets.  No discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

c. According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the names of the
Company.

2. As explained to us, the inventories have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. The discrepancies
noticed on physical verification between the physical stocks and book records were not material.

3. a. During the year, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

b. In view of our comments in para (a) above, Clause (III) (a), (b) and (c) of paragraph 3 of the
aforesaid order are not applicable to the Company.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
advanced any loan to any Director and no investments were made during the year as referred to in
sections 185 and 186 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Paragraph 3(iv) of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.  Hence the provisions of Sections 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules framed there under,
do not apply to this Company.

6. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that prime facie the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have however not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

7. a. According to the records,  the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees ‘state insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax,  Service tax, Goods
and Services Tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise, Value added tax , Cess and all other statutory
dues with the appropriate authorities and there are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as
at March 31, 2021 for a period more than six months from the date they became payable.

b. According to the records of the Company and the information and explanations given to us,
there were no dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise
or value added tax have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institutions and Banks during the year.

9. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3 (ix) of
the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 are not applicable

10. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on

ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT:
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the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our
audit.

11. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance
with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act.

12. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 is not
applicable.

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order 2016 is not applicable.

16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934.

for BRAHMAYYA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Regn No. 000513S

(K.SHRAVAN)
Partner

Membership No.215798
UDIN: 21215798AAAAIH6810

Place : HYDERABAD
Date : 22.06.2021

ANNEXURE – B TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SOUTHERN
MAGNESUIM AND CHEMICALS LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2021 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards
on Auditing, deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by
the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material aspects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud and
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditure of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

for BRAHMAYYA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Regn No. 000513S

(K.SHRAVAN)
Partner

Membership No.215798
UDIN: 21215798AAAAIH6810

Place : HYDERABAD
Date : 22.06.2021
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Particulars Note No. As at As at
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020

A ASSETS
Non- Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2   4,730,290  5,516,434
(b) Other Non  Current Assets   114,014  115,301
(c) Deferred Tax  Asset 3    944,434  703,276

Total Non-Current Assets  5,788,738  6,335,011
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 4  21,502,170  23,447,073
(b) Financial Assets

(i)   Trade receivables 5  1,088,610  993,029
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 6  99,130  374,165
(iii)  Others bank balances 7  10,000,000  2,693,000
(iv)  Others financial assets 8  575,646  554,266

(c) Other current assets 9  333,760  132,822
(d) Current tax asset (net) 10  270,542  348,684

Total Current Assets 33,869,858  28,543,039
Total Assets 39,658,596  34,878,050

B EQUITY AND LIABILITY
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 11  30,000,000  30,000,000
(b) Other equity 12  (5,363,027)  (4,438,906)

Total Equity 24,636,973  25,561,094
LIABILITIES
Non- Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 13  2,198,000  2,390,000
(b) Provisions 14  -  1,058,907

Total Non-Current Liability  2,198,000  3,448,907
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 15  11,262,743  4,827,107
(ii) Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises   -   -
- Total outstanding dues of other than micro and
   small enterprises 542,056  -

(iii) Other financial liabilities 16  652,109  835,062
(b) Other current liabilities 17  366,715  205,880

Total Current Liabilities  12,823,623  5,868,049
Total Equity & Liability 39,658,596  34,878,050

The accompanying notes form an integral
part of the financial statements 01 to 35

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021
(All amounts are in Rupees)

As per our report of even date
For BRAHMAYYA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.000513S

K. Shravan
Partner
Membership No. 215798

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 22.06.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
 Southern Magnesium and Chemicals Limited

N. Rajender prasad
 Jt. Managing Director & CFO

(DIN- 00145659)

N.  Ravi  Prasad
 Managing Director & CEO

(DIN- 00319537)

Mrs. Sneha Sridayal Soni
 Company Secretary
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I. Revenue from operations 18  20,123,960  15,856,485
II. Other Income 19  257,874  277,287

III. Total Income   20,381,834  16,133,772
IV. Expenses

Cost of raw materials consumed 20  7,915,545  6,081,193
Changes in inventories of finished goods
and work-in-progress 21  1,385,909  228,539
Employee benefits expenses 22  7,187,201  7,544,670
Finance costs 23  883,158  849,597
Depreciation and amortization expenses 2  964,985  948,285
Other expenses 24  3,210,316  3,920,765

Total expenses (IV)  21,547,113  19,573,049
V. Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional item and tax (III-IV) (1,165,279)  (3,439,277)
VI. Exceptional Items - -

VII. Profit/(Loss) before tax (V+VI)  (1,165,279)  (3,439,277)
VIII. Tax Expenses

Current Tax - -
Relating to previous year -   (653,910)
Deferred tax (241,158)  (476,311)

IX. Profit/(Loss) for the Period (VIII-IX)  (924,121)  (2,309,056)
Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently

to Profit or Loss Account - -
(ii) Income Tax relating to Items that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total other Comprehensive Income for the period (VIII) - -

X. Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the Period (VII+VIII) (924,121) (2,309,056)
XI. Earning per equity share (Face value of Rs 10/- each)

(1) Basic  (0.31)  (0.77)
(2) Diluted  (0.31)  (0.77)
The accompanying notes form an integral
part of the financial statements Note 1 to 35

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
(All amounts are in Rupees)

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars Notes 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

As per our report of even date
For BRAHMAYYA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.000513S

K. Shravan
Partner
Membership No. 215798

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 22-06-2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
 Southern Magnesium and Chemicals Limited

N. Rajender prasad
 Jt. Managing Director & CFO

(DIN- 00145659)

N.  Ravi  Prasad
 Managing Director & CEO

(DIN- 00319537)

Mrs. Sneha Sridayal Soni
 Company Secretary
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EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Statement of Changes in Equity

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars No. of shares Amount in
Rs.

Balance as at 1st April, 2019 3,000,000 30,000,000
Changes in Equity share capital during 2019-20 0 0

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 3,000,000 30,000,000
Changes in Equity share capital during 2020-21 0 0

Balance as at 31st March 2021 3,000,000 30,000,000

B. Other Equity

Particulars As at As at
31-03-2021 31-03-2020

Surplus in statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance (4,438,906) (2,129,850)
Add : Profit / (Loss) (924,121) (2,309,056)
Less : Appropriations - -

Closing Balance (5,363,027) (4,438,906)

As per our report of even date
For BRAHMAYYA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.000513S

K. Shravan
Partner
Membership No. 215798

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 22.06.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
 Southern Magnesium and Chemicals Limited

N. Rajender prasad
 Jt. Managing Director & CFO

(DIN- 00145659)

N.  Ravi  Prasad
 Managing Director & CEO

(DIN- 00319537)

Mrs. Sneha Sridayal Soni
 Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
(All amounts are in Rupees)

Sl. Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
Net Profit/ (Loss) before tax  (1,165,279)  (3,439,277)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expenses  964,985  948,285
Interest Income  (240,129)  (265,227)
Finance costs  883,158  849,597
Operating Profit before working capital changes  442,735  (1,906,622)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories  1,944,903  (510,910)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables  (95,581)  1,616,475
(Increase) / Decrease in financial and non financial assets  (221,030)  862,118
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables  542,056  -
Increase / (Decrease) in financial liabilities and other liabilities  (22,118)  (3,027,615)
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions  (1,058,907)  1,058,907
Cash generated/(used in) from Operations  1,532,057  (1,907,647)
Income tax paid (net of refunds)  (78,142)  649,553
Net Cash generated from operating activities (A)   1,610,199  (2,557,201)
Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (178,841)  (2,252,947)
Interest received  240,129  265,227
Movment in other bank balances  (7,307,000)  3,525,000
Net Cash generated from/(used in) investing activities (B)  (7,245,712)  1,537,280
Cash flows from/(used in) Financing activities
Repayment of Borrowings  (192,000)  (265,000)
Proceeds/(Repayment) from Current borrowings  6,435,636  1,997,352
Interest paid  (883,158)  (849,597)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) 5,360,478  882,755

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (275,035)  (137,166)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year  374,165  511,331
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  99,130  374,165

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the statement of cash flow

 As at As at
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 31st March, 2021  31st March, 2020

Cash on hand  55,678  235,971
Current accounts  43,452  138,194

Total 99,130  374,165

As per our report of even date
For BRAHMAYYA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.000513S

K. Shravan
Partner
Membership No. 215798

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 22.06.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
 Southern Magnesium and Chemicals Limited

N. Rajender prasad
 Jt. Managing Director & CFO

(DIN- 00145659)

N.  Ravi  Prasad
 Managing Director & CEO

(DIN- 00319537)

Mrs. Sneha Sridayal Soni
 Company Secretary
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate Information

Southern Magnesium & Chemicals Limited (SMCL or “the Company) is promoted by Dr. N B Prasad and family. The
Company is in the business of manufacturing magnesium metal, in a joint venture with the Andhra Pradesh Industrial
Development Corporation. The Company diversified its business into production of various downstream products like
magnesium granules, magnesium powder, magnesium alloy and magnesium extrusion.

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
specified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read together with the Rule 4 of Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as amended by Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules 2016 to the extent applicable and the other relevant provisions of the Act, pronouncements of the
regulatory bodies applicable to the Company. The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods
presented in the financial statements.

The Financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March,2021 were approved by the Board of
Directors on 22nd June,2021.

These financial statements have been prepared by the Company as a going concern on the basis of relevant Ind
AS that are effective or elected for early adoption at the Company’s annual reporting date, 31 March 2021. The
accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. The financial
statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial instruments which have been
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies mentioned
below.

1.1 Current Vs Non-current classifications:

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III (Division II) to the Companies Act, 2013. Based
on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

1.2     Significant Accounting Policies

a. Property, Plant and Equipment:

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial recognition
at cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment other than land are carried
at their cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land is
carried at cost of acquisition.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises the purchase price and any cost
attributable to bring the asset to its location and working condition for its intended use. Borrowing
costs relating to acquisition of property, plant and equipment which take substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets
are ready to put to use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Costs in nature of repairs and
maintenance are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method on the assets over the useful lives specified in
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions is being provided on pro rata basis
from the date of such additions. Depreciation on assets sold, discarded or demolished during the
year is being provided up to the date on which such assets are sold, discarded or demolished.
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b. Impairment of Assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 36, the company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is
any indication that an asset may be impaired. An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost
exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in a prior
accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

c. Valuation of Inventories:

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is arrived at by using
weighted average method and includes all costs of purchases, conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

d. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

I. Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit & loss account transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset, purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place are
recognized on the trade date i.e. the date that the company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified as measured at:

1) Amortized Cost

2) Fair value through profit and loss(FVTPL)

3) Fair value through other comprehensive income(FVTOCI)

Financial Asset measured at amortized cost

Financial Assets held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding are measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate (EIR) method.
The EIR amortization is recognized as finance income in the statement of Profit &Loss. The
company while applying above criteria has classified all the financial assets at amortized cost.

Financial Assets Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both,
selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payment so principal
and interest ,are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income(OCI). Interest income
measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. On de-recognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to‘ other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial Asset are measured at fair value through Profit & Loss if it does not meet the criteria for
classification as measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI. All fair value changes are recognized
in the statement of profit & loss.

De-recognition of Financial Assets

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the
asset.
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II.  Financial Liabilities.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus any transaction cost that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial liability except financial liabilities at FVTPL that are measured at
fairvalue.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in
fair value recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Liabilities at amortized cost

Amortized cost for financial liabilities represents amount at which financial liability is measured at
initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using
the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount and the maturity amount.
All the financial liabilities of the company are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
Effective Interest method.

De recognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability shall be de-recognized when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or canceled or expires.

e. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

At the date of commencement of lease, the Company recognises a Right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and
a corresponding liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with the
term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and low value leases. For short term and low value
leases, the Company recognises the lease payment as an operating expense on straight line basis
over the term of lease.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate explicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases.

f. Foreign Exchange Transactions:

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are accounted for initially at the exchange rate prevailing
on the date of transaction. Foreign Currency monetary Assets and Liabilities are translated at year
end exchange rates. Fluctuations, if any, due to change in exchange rates between the dates of
transactions and the dates of crystallisation are debited / credited to Statement of Profit & Loss.

g. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable and is recognized to
the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership in
the goods are transferred to the buyer. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, Amount disclosed as revenue are excluding goods and service tax (GST),
sales tax or value added taxes or service taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government, and
net off returns, trade discounts, rebates and any amount collected on behalf of third parties.
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Interest/ Dividend

Interest Income is recognized using the Effective interest rate (EIR) method. Dividend income is
recognized when right to receive is established.

h. Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as
part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of
time to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

i. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is
a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an out flow of
resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes on accounts.
Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

j. Income Taxes

Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to a business combination or to an item
which is recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable/receivable on the taxable income/ loss for the year using
applicable tax rates at the Balance Sheet date, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous
years. Interest income/ expenses and penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in current
tax expense.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of the reporting period.

k. Earnings Per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares, which includes all stock options granted to employees.

l. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with generally Accepted Accounting Principles
require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
result of operations during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these
estimates. Revisions in accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are –

- Estimates of Useful life of Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
- Measurement of defined benefit obligation
- Recognition of deferred taxes
- Estimation of impairment

- Estimation of provision and contingent liabilities

1.3 Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On March 24th, 2021, The Ministry of Corporate affairs (MCA) through notification amended
schedule no. 3 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Amendment revise division No.I, II & III of
schedule 3 and are applicable from April 1, 2021. The Amendments of extensive and the
Company will avaluate the same to give effect to them as require by law.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021

3 Deferred Tax Asset (Net) (All amounts are in Rupees)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Deferred Tax Asset
MAT Credit 834,354  834,354
On Expenses Allowed on Payment basis  33,041  299,061
On Unused Carry forward Losses 437,700 0
Gross Deferred Tax Asset  1,305,095  1,133,415

Deferred Tax Liability
On Property, Plant and Equipment  360,661  430,139
Gross Deferred Tax Liability 360,661  430,139

Net Defrred Tax Asset/(Liability)  944,434  703,276

4 INVENTORIES :

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(i) Raw materials 13,556,943  14,115,937
(ii) Finished goods  7,945,227  9,331,136

TOTAL  21,502,170  23,447,073

5 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

A. Secured 0 0
B. Unsecured

i.Considered good  1,088,610  991,200
ii.Significant increase in credit risk  701,830  701,830
iii.Credit Impaired  -  -

Less: Provision for doubtfull allowance  701,830  700,000

TOTAL 1,088,610  993,030

6 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

i) Cash on hand  55,678  235,971
ii)   Balances with banks in Current Accounts  43,452  138,194

TOTAL 99,130  374,165

7 OTHER BANK BALANCES

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Balances with Bank
 - Margin money deposits (on Bank Gaurantees) with
balance maturity of less than 3 Months   10,000,000 2,693,000

TOTAL 10,000,000  2,693,000
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021

10 CURRENT TAX  ASSET  (Net)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Income tax (Net of Advance tax)  270,542  348,684

Total  270,542  348,684

8 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(i) Interest receivable  454,450  267,070
(ii) Deposits Recoverable  117,196  287,196
(iii) Advances to Staff 4,000 -

TOTAL 575,646  554,266

9 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(i) Advance for purchase of raw material and stores   8,222  8,222
(ii) Prepaid Expenses 70,304  43,142
(iii) Balance with Central Excise and others 10,208  10,208
(iv) GST Receivable  245,026  71,250

TOTAL 333,760  132,822

11 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Authorised:
40,00,000 - Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 40,000,000   40,000,000
10,00,000 - 5% Redeemable Cumulative Preference
Shares of Rs 10/- each.   10,000,000   10,000,000

Issued Subscribed & Fully Paid Up
30,00,000 - Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each, fully paid up 30,000,000   30,000,000

Total 30,000,000   30,000,000

11 (a)Reconciliation of the number of shares.

Particulars   As at 31st March 2021     As at 31st March 2020
 Nos  Amount  Nos  Amount

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  3,000,000 30,000,000  3,000,000 30,000,000
Add: Issue during the year  -  -  -

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 3,000,000 30,000,000  3,000,000  30,000,000

(All amounts are in Rupees)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021

11(b) Rights, preference and restriction attached to shares :

Equity shares: The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share.
Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,
except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in
proportion to their shareholding.

11(c) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars

Mr. N. Ravi Prasad 390648 13.02 390648 13.02
M/s. Andhra Pradesh Industrial
Development Corporation 337500 11.25 337500 11.25
Mr. N. Ranga Prasad 259298 8.64 259298 8.64
Mr. N. Rajender Prasad 248498 8.28 248498 8.28
Smt. N. Anantha Lakshmi 233998 7.80 233998 7.80
Mr. N Ram Prasad 180298 6.01 180298 6.01

As at 31st March 2021
No of shares % held

As at 31st March 2020
No of shares % held

12 OTHER EQUITY

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Surplus/(Deficit) in statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance    (4,438,906)  (2,129,850)
Add: Profit / (Loss)   (924,121)  (2,309,056)

Closing Balance  (5,363,027)  (4,438,906)

13 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES : (All amounts are in Rupees)

(i) BORROWINGS

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Unsecured loans -   Loans from related parties
Inter-corporate Deposits  2,198,000  2,390,000

TOTAL  2,198,000  2,390,000

14 PROVISIONS

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

 Provision for gratuity  -  1,058,907

TOTAL  -  1,058,907

15  BORROWINGS

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Secured  Loan
Union Bank of India OD A/c  11,262,743  4,827,107

TOTAL  11,262,743  4,827,107
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021

16 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Creditors for Other expenses  310,873  388,997
Employee benefit payable  341,236  446,065

TOTAL 652,109  835,062

17  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(i)   Dues to related party Directors 102,449  73,396
(ii)  Statutory liabilities 264,266  132,484

TOTAL  366,715  205,880

18 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Sale of Products 20,123,960  15,856,485

TOTAL 20,123,960  15,856,485

19 OTHER INCOME

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Interest Income  240,129  265,227
Misc. Income  17,745  12,060

TOTAL 257,874  277,287

20 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Inventory at the beginning of the year  14,115,937  11,655,747
Add: Purchases  7,356,551  8,541,383
Less: Inventory at the end of the year  13,556,943  14,115,937

Cost of raw materials consumed 7,915,545  6,081,193
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25 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Profit/(Loss) for the Period    (924,121)  (2,309,056)
Face Value of Share of Rs. Rs. 10 Each Rs. 10 Each
Weighted Avg. No. of. Shares for computing basic and diluted EPS  3,000,000  3,000,000
Earnings Per Share
Basic and Diluted (in Rs.) (0.31)  (0.77)

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Opening inventories
(i) Finished goods   9,331,136  11,280,416
(ii) Work-In-process   -   -

Adjustment in Inventory   -  (1,720,741)
Closing inventories  -
(i) Finished goods 7,945,227  9,331,136
(ii) Work-In-process  - -

(Increase) / decrease in  inventory 1,385,909  228,539
22 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

(i) Salaries, wages, and bonus  6,485,951  6,669,026
(ii)  Contribution to provident fund  405,465  335,635
(iii) Staff welfare expenses  295,785  540,009

TOTAL 7,187,201  7,544,670

23 FINANCE COSTS

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Interest expense on :
(i) Working capital facility  761,848  652,776
(ii) Others  121,310  196,821

TOTAL 883,158  849,597

21 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF ,FINISHED GOODS,TRADED GOODS AND WORK-IN-PROCESS

24 OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Consumption of general stores  312,654  102,852
Power and Fuel  377,973  266,230
Repairs to :

Buildings  33,890  6,250
Machinery  535,641  389,342
Others  101,540  88,167
Vehicle maintenance  185,066  315,485
Freight & Others  88,097  146,501

Payments to Auditors
As Auditors  46,000  46,000
for Tax Audit  15,000  15,000
for Certification  6,000  6,000
Rates and Taxes  25,404  26,304
Postage, Telegrams and Telephones  112,344  165,791
Travelling, Conveyance and Vehicle expenses  81,870  1,003,981
Insurance  149,458  159,152
Professional charges  256,520  198,990
Miscellaneous expenses 882,859  984,720

TOTAL 3,210,316  3,920,765
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021
Note 26

Financial Risk Management

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Company’s overall risk management
focus the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial
performance.

I. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of the future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change
in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the
interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices and other market changes that affect market
risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including
investments and deposits, foreign currency receivables, payables and borrowings.

a. Foreign Currency Risk-

Foreign Currency Risk is the risk of impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in foreign
currency, which fluctuate due to change in foreign currency rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates is negligible. The company does not enter into any derivative instruments for
trading or speculative purposes.

b. Interest Rate Risk–

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market rates relates
primarily to the Company’s short term borrowing. The Company constantly monitors the credit markets and re-
balances its financing strategies to achieve an optimal maturity profile and financing cost.

II. Credit Risk

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
custom contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily trade receivables) and from its financing/investing activities, including deposits with banks. The company
has a prudent and conservative process for managing its credit risk arising in the course of its business activities.
The Company is receiving payments regularly from its customers and hence the Company has no significant
credit risk.

III. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to settle or meet obligations on time or at
reasonable price. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities
and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities to meet obligations when due. The
Company’s treasury team is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition,
processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the
Company’s liquidity position through rolling forecasts based on expected cash flows

Note 27

Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at
fair value, grouped into level 1 to level 3 as described below

Level 1 – Quoted prices in an active market:

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 – Valuation techniques with observable inputs:

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e.,
derived from prices). There are no financial instruments held by the company which fall under this category

Level 3 – Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs:
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021

Particulars                                     As at
March 31,2021 March 31,2020

a)  Debt Obligations 1,34,60,743 72,17,107
b)  Cash and Cash Equivalents 99,130 3,74,165
c)  Net Debt (a-b) 1,33,61,613 68,42,942
d)  Total Equity 2,46,36,973 2,55,61,094
e) Debt to Equity ratio 0.54 0.27

Note 30
Reconciliation of Tax Expense and Accounting profit multiplied by Applicable tax rate

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

(I) Tax expense/ (credit) recognized in Statement of Profit and loss   
Current Tax 0 0
Deferred Tax (2,41,158) (4,76,311)
Relating to previous years 0 (6,53,910)

Total (2,41,158) (11,30,221)
(II) Effective tax Reconciliation   

(a) Profit/(loss) before tax (11,65,279) (34,39,277)
(b) Applicable tax rate 26% 26%
(c) Tax expense/(credit) on Net profit (a*b) (3,02,972) (8,94,212)
(d) Others adjustments 61,814 (2,36,009)
(e) Tax Expense as per Statement of Profit and loss (c+d) (2,41,158) (11,30,221)

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on
assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument
nor are they based on available market data. There are no financial instruments held by the company which fall under
this category.

Note 28

Forex Transactions

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Raw Materials :
Value of Imports (CIF) - 62,03,847

Total - 62,03,847

Note 29
Capital Management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to

i) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders.

ii) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital Consistent with others in the industry, the
company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:

Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet)

Gearing Ratio

Note 31

Employee benefits

In view of very limited strength of the employees, presently working in the Company the requirements of the Ind AS -
19 Employee Benefits in respect of Gratuity could not be complied with. However, Liability for Gratuity is being funded
through Life Insurance Corporation of India.
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Note 32
Related party disclosures as required by the IND AS 24

 S. No Related Parties Nature of Relationship
1 Sri. N. Ravi Prasad, Managing Director

Key Managerial Personnel
2 Sri. N. Rajender Prasad, Joint Managing Director
3 Smt. N. Anantha Lakshmi

Relatives of Directors
4 Sri. N. Ram Prasad
5 Southern Electrodes Ltd Enterprise over which
6 Pumps  India Pvt. Ltd Key Managerial Personnel & their

relatives exercise significant lnfluence.

1. Transactions with Key Management personnel (Amount in Rs.)

S.No Nature of transaction Current Year Previous Year

1 Remuneration 36,86,400 30,13,037
2 Medical Reimbursement 1,81,598 3,00,998
3 Club Subscriptions 46,255 30,760
4 Un Secured Loans

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 0 0
Amounts received during the year 0 0
Amounts repaid during the year 0 0
Outstanding at the end of the year 0 0

5 Current Liabilities – Current Accounts of the
Key Managerial Personal
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 73,396 1,52,297
Amounts received during the year 6,03,155 5,98,819
Amounts repaid during the year 5,74,102 6,77,720
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,02,449 73,396

S.No. Nature of Transaction Current Year Previous Year

1 Inter Corporate Deposits received
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 23,90,000 26,55,000
Amounts received during the year 0 0
Amounts repaid during the year 1,92,000 2,65,000
Outstanding at the end of the year 21,98,000 23,90,000

2 Current Liabilities
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 82,022 92,022
Amounts received during the year 0 0
Amounts repaid during the year 78,494 10,000
Outstanding at the end of the year 13,528 82,022

Note 33
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
There are no amounts outstanding as at 31stMarch, 2021 payable to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. There are no Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days during the year and also as at 31st
March, 2021. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has
been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company and relied upon
by the Auditors.

Note 34
Previous Year’s figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s figures. Except otherwise stated.
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For BRAHMABRAHMABRAHMABRAHMABRAHMAYYYYYYYYYYAAAAA & CO., & CO., & CO., & CO., & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.000513S

K. SK. SK. SK. SK. Shravanhravanhravanhravanhravan
Partner
Membership No. 215798

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 22-06-2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
 Southern Magnesium and Chemicals Limited

N. Rajender prasad
 Jt. Managing Director & CFO

(DIN- 00145659)

N.  Ravi  Prasad
 Managing Director & CEO

(DIN- 00319537)

Mrs. Sneha Sridayal Soni
 Company Secretary

2. Transactions with Enterprises over which Key Management personal and their relatives exercise Significant Influence:

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021



SOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITEDSOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITEDSOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITEDSOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITEDSOUTHERN MAGNESIUM AND CHEMICALS LIMITED
Regd. Office: DECCAN CHAMBERS (5th Floor), 6-3-666/B,
Somajiguda, Hyderabad - 500 082.
Phone : 23311789, 23312341
Email : southernmagnesium@gmail.com




